
Bryant City Council

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room

210 SW 3rd Street

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

Date: February 27, 2024 - Time: 6:30 PM

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Approval of Minutes

1. January 30th Council Meeting - Unapproved minutes
• Unapproved Bryant City Council Meeting Jan 30 2024.docx.pdf

2. February 13th Special Council Meeting - Unapproved minutes
• Unapproved Minutes Feb 13 2024 SPECIAL Bryant Council Meeting.docx.pdf

Presentations and Announcements

3. Arkansas First Responders Week Proclamation
• Arkansas First Responders Week Proclamation.pdf

4. Recognition of Chief JP Jordan Retirement

Citation from State Representative RJ Hawk

5. State of the City - By Mayor Rhonda Sanders
• State of the City Address February 2024.docx.pdf

Director's Report

Public Comments

Old Business

New Business

Finance

6. Regular Monthly Financial Report - Period ending January 31, 2024

Acceptance and approval of the city financial report for the period ending January 31, 2024, see attached.

• 02.15.24 City Financials for ending January 31 of 2024.pdf

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/unapproved_bryant_city_council_meeting_jan_30_2024-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/unapproved_minutes_feb_13_2024_special_bryant_council_meeting-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/arkansas_first_responders_week_proclamation.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/state_of_the__city_address_february_2024-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/02-15-24_city_financials_for_ending_january_31_of_2024.pdf


• 02.15.24 Finance Dept Head Report with Attachments.pdf

7. Resolution for Budget Adjustments - For period ending January 31, 2024

Resolution to approve Budget Adjustments to the period beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024, see

attached.

• 2.27.24 BA Resolution.pdf

8. Resolution for Budget Adjustments - For period ending December 31, 2023

Resolution to approve Budget Adjustments to the period beginning January 1, 2023 and ending December 31, 2023, see

attached.

• 2.27.24 BA Resolution for 2023.pdf

Animal Control

9. Resolution - Authorizing the Mayor to Sell or Dispose of City Property

A resolution authorizing the Mayor, and/or his/her duly authorized representative to sell, exchange or dispose of property

belonging to the City that is no longer in use.

• Resolution Sell or Dispose of Property.pdf

City Attorney

10. Interlocal Agreement
• DRAFT 2-22-2024 - Interlocal Agreement with Saline County.docx.pdf

• Redlined DRAFT 2-22-2024 - Interlocal Agreement with Saline County Concerning Developments in the Citys Planning

Jurisdiction (1).docx.pdf

11. Ordinance to Reduce the Speed Limit on Hilltop Road - 3rd reading

An ordinance to reduce the speed limit on Hilltop Road in Bryant, AR from its present speed limit of 45 MPH to a maximum

of 35 MPH; declaring an emergency; and for other purposes.

• Ordinance to change the speed limit on Hilltop Road.docx (1).pdf

Community Development

12. Resolution for Short-Term Rentals - Resolution to temporarily suspend zoning regulations for short-term

rentals.
• Resolution to suspend rules for Short Term rental.docx.pdf

Public Works

13. Ordinance to Update Leak Adjustment Policy - An ordinance authorizing implementation of a policy

governing water leakage adjustments in Bryant, Arkansas.

See exhibit A.

• 2024 Water Leakage Ordinance.docx.pdf

• Updated Leak Adjustment Policy 2.13.2024.docx.pdf

14. MOU with Bryant Schools - MOU between Bryant Schools and the City of Bryant for road improvements

on Hill Farm Road.
• Hill Farm Rd MOU with Bryant School District.docx.pdf

• Hill Farm Impvts - 1 and 2 only.pdf

15. Nancy Pruitt appointed to Water/Sewer Advisory Committee

Mayor Sanders recommends Nancy Pruitt serve as Water/Sewer Advisory Committee representative for Ward 2.

• Ward 2 Water.wasterwater position recommendation.docx.pdf

Council Comments

https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/02-15-24_finance_dept_head_report_with_attachments.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/2-27-24_ba_resolution.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/2-27-24_ba_resolution_for_2023.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/resolution_sell_or_dispose_of_property.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/draft_2-22-2024_-_interlocal_agreement_with_saline_county-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/redlined_draft_2-22-2024_-_interlocal_agreement_with_saline_county_concerning_developments_in_the_citys_planning_jurisdiction_-1--docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/redlined_draft_2-22-2024_-_interlocal_agreement_with_saline_county_concerning_developments_in_the_citys_planning_jurisdiction_-1--docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/ordinance_to_change_the_speed_limit_on_hilltop_road-docx_-1-.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/resolution_to_suspend_rules_for_short_term_rental-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/2024_water_leakage_ordinance-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/updated_leak_adjustment_policy_2-13-2024-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/hill_farm_rd_mou_with_bryant_school_district-docx.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/hill_farm_impvts_-_1_and_2_only.pdf
https://www.cityofbryant.com/grab/agendas/uploads/agenda_275/ward_2_water-wasterwater_position_recommendation-docx.pdf


Mayor Comments

Adjournments



Bryant City Council Meeting
January 30, 2024 - 6:30 PM

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room
210 SW 3rd Street Bryant, Arkansas

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

A prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Jon Martin.

Call to Order- Mayor Sanders at 6:30 pm

Roll Call

Council Members Present: Jason Brown, Star Henson, Jon Martin, Lisa Meyer, Jack Moseley, Jordan
O’Roark, and Wade Permenter.

Council Members Absent: Rob Roedel. Quorum Present.

City Clerk Mark Smith and City Attorney Ashley Clancy were also present.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. Approval of December 19, 2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes [YT 2:10]

Motion to approve - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Brown.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

2. Committee/Commission Liaisons - Mayor Sanders appointed the [YT 2:45]

following Council Members to each of the City's Committees/Commissions.
Planning Commission - Jon Martin and Wade Permenter;
Parks Committee - Star Henson and Rob Roedel;
Water Sewer Advisory Committee - Lisa Meyer and Jack Moseley;
Community Engagement Committee - Jordan O'Roark and Jason Brown.

DIRECTOR’S REPORTS

3. Animal Control- Tricia Power- Director, presented the 2023 year in review. [YT 3:45]

4. Public Comments
Brendon Sutherland- thinks $15 sewer fee is unfair [YT 20:25]

Adam Baker- gave an update on Salt County Lacrosse
King David Aker- wants progress on flooding issues in Crossing Loop neighborhood
Joseph McIntyre- thankful for Police presence at school and hoping for speed reduction
Randy Bullock- concerned speed reduction on Hilltop Road will be too slow

OLD BUSINESS

5. Coral Ridge Property Update- Director Treat announced that the Parks Committee [YT 41:55]

does not wish to pursue a property donation in the Coral Ridge subdivision.

1 | Page

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas


City Attorney- Ashley Clancy

6. Ordinance to Reduce the Speed Limit on Hilltop Road - 2nd reading [YT 42:40]
An ordinance to reduce the speed limit on Hilltop Road in Bryant, AR from its present speed
limit of 45 MPH to a maximum of 35 MPH; declaring an emergency; and for other purposes.

Motion by Council Member Martin to change the Ordinance to 40 MPH, Second by Council
Member Moseley.
Discussion followed.
Voice Vote results were unclear and the Mayor called for a Roll Call Vote.
YEA: Brown, Henson, Martin, Moseley.
NEY: Meyer, O’Roark, Permenter. ABSENT: Roedel.
Vote total: YEAS 4 NEY 4 
The Mayor did not vote. Motion Failed.

Motion to read on 2nd reading by Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Brown.
Mayor read Ordinance title.

NEW BUINESS

Water/Wastewater Committee [YT 52:30]

7. Water Sewer Advisory Committee Secretary Appointment as required by by-laws.
Director Tim Fournier nominated Amanda Roe as the new Public Works Administrative
Assistant.
Motion to Approve- Council Member Brown, second by Council Member O’Roark.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

Clerk Note: Due to changes during the meeting, the Agenda numbers and Minute numbers do not
match.

Finance – Presented by Joy Black, Director

8. Monthly Financial Report – Ending December 31, 2023 [YT 53:30]

Acceptance and Approval of the Financial Report for the period ending December 31, 2023.
Motion to approve - Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Henson.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

9. Resolution- Budget Amending the 2023 City Budget - A Resolution to amend the [YT 57:20]

City budget for the period of January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023.
Motion to approve - Council Member Permenter, Second by Council Member Meyer.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).
 RESOLUTION 2024 - 02

Motion by Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member O’Roark to label [YT 59:00]

Item 9 Resolution as Resolution 2024-02
Voice Vote. Motion Passed.

2 | Page



Motion by Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Meyer to change the [YT 59:40]

Agenda and place the Council Meeting Resolution next on the Agenda.
Voice Vote. Motion passed.

10.Approval of 2024 Council Meeting Dates Resolution [YT 1:00:25]

City Attorney Clancy presented the Council meeting dates and times.
Motion to adopt by Council Member Permenter, Second by Council Member Henson.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).
 RESOLUTION 2024-01

11.Resolution - Amending the 2024 City Budget [YT 1:02:40]

A Resolution to amend the city budget for the period beginning January 1, 2024 and ending
December 31, 2024, Encumbrances ongoing projects from 2023 or before including one
regular budget adjustment.
Motion to adopt by Council Member Permenter, Second by Council Member Henson.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).
 RESOLUTION 2024-03

12.Ordinance - Ordinance for Record Destruction [YT 1:04:10]

An Ordinance requesting the destruction of city records per 14-59-114 and 1-237-112.
Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, 3rd reading by title only by Council Member
Martin, Second by Council Member Henson.
Title read by Mayor.
Motion to adopt - Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member Henson.
Roll Call Vote. YEA: Brown, Henson, Martin, Meyer, Moseley, O’Roark, Permenter. Roedel
absent. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

 ORDINANCE 2024-01

Community Development – presented by Interim Director Colton Leonard

13. Resolution – Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) Grant 2024 [YT 1:06:05]

A Resolution Expressing the Willingness of the City of Bryant to Utilize Federal-Aid Funds for
the Following Project: Debswood Park to Evans Loop Trail Connector.
Grants Coordinator Rebecca Kidder explained that the Community Development Department
is seeking permission to apply for the $400,000 80/20 grant that is available through
Metroplan. The City would be responsible for $80,000 and Street Department has set the
funding aside. This trail has been on the City Master Plan for several years.
Discussion followed.
Motion to approve by Council Member O’Roark, Second by Council Member Henson.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).
 RESOLUTION 2024-04

Parks and Recreation – presented by Chris Treat

14. Drew Martin appointed to Parks Committee [YT 1:12:30]

Mayor Sanders recommends Drew Martin serve as Parks Committee representative for
Ward 4 (2028).
Motion to approve by Council Member Meyer, Second by Council Member O’Roark.

3 | Page



Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

15.Reappointment of Parks Committee Members [YT 1:13:25]

Ward 1: Amanda Jolly (2026); Renee Curtis (2028);
Ward 2: Richard McKeown (2026); Lynn Farmer (2028);
Ward 3: Jason Whittington (2026); Cody Crist (2028).
Motion to approve by Council Member Brown Second by Council Member Permenter.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed 7-1, (1 absent).

Public Works – presented by Director, Tim Fournier

16.Amend Ordinance Section 6 of Ordinance No. 2020-04 [YT 1:14:20]

An Ordinance to Amend Section 6 of Ordinance No. 2020-04 and Adopting Flood Damage
Prevention Code Dated February 1, 2024 for the City of Bryant, Arkansas; and prescribing
other matters relating thereto.
Darren Robertson, the City certified Flood Plane Manager recommends two technical changes
to the Flood Plane Ordinance that have been approved by Planning Commission.
Discussion followed.
Motion to suspend the rules and read 1st, 2nd, 3rd reading by title only by Council Member
Henson, Second by Council Member Permenter.
Title read by Mayor.
Motion to adopt - Council Member Permenter, Second by Council Member Meyer.
Roll Call Vote. YEA: Brown, Henson, Martin, Meyer, Moseley, O’Roark, Permenter. NEA:
Roedel (absent). Motion Passed 8-0.
Motion to Adopt Emergency Clause by Council Member Permenter, Second by Council
Member Brown.
Roll Call Vote. YEA: Brown, Henson, Martin, Meyer, Moseley, O’Roark, Permenter. NEA:
Roedel (absent). Motion Passed 7-1.
 ORDINANCE 2024-02

Council Comments [YT 1:27:55]

Lisa Meyer- Thanks to Joy Black and staff for Budget Workshop. Thanks to Public Works for work
during bad weather.
Wade Permenter- ARDOT is repairing Interstate 30 service roads. Old rezoning signs need pickup.
Jon Martin- Thanks Public Works for work during bad weather.

Mayor Comments [YT 1:31:05]

Community Engagement Committee has met and there are openings for new members.
Thanks city employees for work during bad weather days.
Shout out to City Crews who saluted a funeral procession that passed by their work site.

Adjournment
Motion to Adjourn by Council Member Brown, second by Council Member Permenter.
Adjourned time: 8:02 PM

4 | Page



SPECIAL Bryant City Council Meeting
February 13, 2024 - 6:00 PM

Boswell Municipal Complex - City Hall Court Room
210 SW 3rd Street Bryant, Arkansas

YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas

UNAPPROVED MINUTES

A prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Roedel

Call to Order- Mayor Sanders at 6:00 pm

Roll Call

Council Members Present: Jason Brown, Star Henson, Jon Martin, Lisa Meyer, Jack Moseley, Rob
Roedel, Jordan O’Roark, and Wade Permenter.

City Clerk Mark Smith and City Attorney Ashley Clancy were also present.

NEW BUSINESS

Motion by Council Member Martin, Second by Council Member Meyer to add Approval of [YT 2:30]

Work Order No. 2 for the Garver Engineering Master Agreement to the Agenda as Item 2.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed.

Public Works – presented by Tim Fournier, Director [YT 3:20]

1. Signatory Authority Resolution - A resolution approving, and designating and authorizing
the Mayor and Manager of the City of Bryant's water and sewer system to execute certain
documents in connection with Bryant's participation in Saline Regional Public Water Authority.
Motion to approve by Council Member Roedel, Second by Council Member Brown.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed.
 RESOLUTION 2024 – 05

2. Approval of Work Order No. 2 to the Garver Engineering Master Agreement [YT 6:15]

This project will help ease the restriction of the Owen Creek water flow between the Oak
Glenn Loop and Crossing Place neighborhoods and will be the first step towards mitigating
the flooding. The cost is $52,000 and Public Works crews will be doing the work.
Motion to approve by Council Member Permenter, Second by Council Member Meyer.
Voice Vote. Motion Passed.

Adjournment
Motion to Adjourn by Council Member Roedel, second by Council Member Permenter.
Adjourned time: 6:46 PM

1 | Page

https://www.youtube.com/c/bryantarkansas


THE CITY OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS

CITATION AND PROCLAMATION TO THE CITIZENS OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS

Whereas, the first responders of Arkansas, including police officers, firefighters, paramedics, and other emergency
personnel, selflessly put their lives on the line every day to protect and serve our communities; and

Whereas, these brave individuals exhibit unwavering courage, professionalism, and dedication in the face of danger
and adversity; and

Whereas, the sacrifices made by Arkansas first responders, both on and off duty, deserve recognition and
appreciation from the community they serve; and

Whereas, Arkansas First Responders Week provides an opportunity for the community to come together and
express gratitude for the tireless efforts of these heroes; and

Whereas, the commitment and sacrifice of Arkansas first responders inspires others to serve their communities and
make a positive difference; and

Whereas, the services provided by Arkansas first responders are vital in ensuring public safety, emergency
response, and disaster management; and

Whereas, Arkansas First Responders Week serves as a reminder to support initiatives that enhance the well-being
and resources available to first responders; and

Whereas, the resilience and compassion displayed by Arkansas first responders in times of crisis exemplify the true
spirit of community and unity; and

Whereas, The City of Bryant, in conjunction with the State of Arkansas, acknowledges the week of March 3rd-8th as
Arkansas First Responders Week.

Now, Therefore, I, Rhonda Sanders, Mayor of Bryant, Arkansas do hereby proclaim the week of March 3rd-8th, 2024,
as First Responders Week in the City of Bryant and I urge all citizens to show their appreciation and support to our
first responders as they serve our community.

_____________________________
Mayor Rhonda Sanders



State of the City
Delivered February 27, 2024

I am truly honored to be able to bring this State of the City Report tonight. Even

though my Mayorship has been non-traditional and limited in time, there are still

many things to report and highlight. Bryant has been a growing and thriving city

for many years. I am pleased that this has continued even through difficult

situations. So, I would like to share my thoughts under four main headings;

Collaborating, Constructing, Connecting and Challenging Changes.

COLLABORATING

The City of Bryant worked diligently over the past year to successfully complete

several major projects in collaboration with municipalities in Saline County. Last

week a formal contract was signed between Bryant and eight other municipalities

to move forward with the Saline Regional Public Water Authority. This effort, to

identify and develop a Saline County water source, has been in the works for

nearly 30 years. This past week it became a true reality. By joining together, we

will be able to supply our citizens with a sustainable source of water with stable

pricing. This collaboration will positively affect Bryant and all of Saline county far

into the future. Moriah Winkle and Tim Fournier from our Public Works

Department were key players in making the contract happen. It has been

invaluable to have Bryant so well represented throughout the process.

Additionally, this past year, Chief Minden and Chief Jordan worked collaboratively

with the Saline County Emergency Communications Center to prepare for and

complete a consolidation that is the result of the Arkansas Public Safety Act of

2019, which stated that Public Safety Answering Points (PSAP’s) were required to

consolidate across the state. 

The Bryant Police Department, along with the City Council and Mayor, worked to
come to an agreement that would allow Bryant 911 to stay operational, however
in September 2022, City Council and the Mayor voted to join the Saline County
PSAP and Saline County Emergency Communications Center. 

The consolidation will now become official on March 5, 2024. The City of Bryant is
working to ensure our citizens have the best possible care and response during a
time of need. Working collaboratively is essential for this to happen.



During the past year city personnel were, led by Joy Black, to work collaboratively
to improve data and information systems for the public. The city financial office
implemented a new financial system that allows for better reporting and
monitoring, while integrating multiple billing systems that were manual in the
past. This will save time and provide for better accountability of resources in the
future.

Bryant Animal Control worked diligently this past year to achieve the status of
being a “No Kill” shelter. This status is now within reach due to the collaborative
effort of Tricia Power, Animal Control Director. By partnering with other shelters
in state and out of state, Bryant Animal Control has placed more animals in their
forever homes. This has resulted in fewer animals being euthanized.

CONSTRUCTING

In 2023 Bryant was busy constructing new opportunities for our citizens. The
largest project by far has been the Bryant Parkway. The parkway is on track to be
completed by July 2024. When open the parkway will connect the north side of
the interstate with the southside of the interstate and will open the corridor all
the way to the Saline Regional Airport. This will provide Bryant with new
opportunities for smart growth that will bring new resources to our city.

The new tennis and pickle ball courts at Mills Park were completed and named the
Boswell Courts in 2023 under the direction of Parks Director Treat. The courts
have been used by hundreds of citizens and visitors.

In 2023 we were also able to install a new water metering system along with new
meters for each of our direct water clients. The new meters were successfully
installed and the new metering system allows clients to access their billing online
and monitor their usage in real time.

Our Public Works Department has been busy adding to the amount of work they
can do in-house. Last year our staff performed over 2000 feet of pipe bursting in
the Stillman/Stivers areas, upgraded street lights, overlaid roads and completed
drainage phases in Cambridge Place, Stonepine, Meadow Creek Drive and
Dogwood Place. Additionally, they secured funding for two large sewer projects
set to begin in 2024.



We still have growth in our city with 96 new residential building permits and 11
new commercial building permits issued. Quality growth is critical in order for a
city to have the resources necessary to retain and improve the quality of life.

CONNECTING

One of the critical roles City Hall plays is implementing ways to connect our
citizens with each other and with City Officials. Most people would not consider
the city budget as a way to connect to the community, but in Bryant this has been
the case. Multiple opportunities were offered to the public to give their input into
our city budget. I appreciate our Finance Department and other volunteers
attending events and meetings to make the public aware of our budget process
and to hear their opinions. Our budget book once again earned the Distinguished
Budget Presentation award because of its easy to follow format and its public
education focus. The budget book is readily available on our city website for
anyone interested in learning more.

Another way we connected in 2023 was through the development of a new
Master Parks Plan. The process included input from several hundred citizens and
out of city limits park visitors. Several community meetings were held to get input
on where we want our parks to be in the next 20 years. The plan is available on
our city website on the Parks and Recreation page.

Recently the Community Engagement Committee re-grouped and has set a course
for engagement between citizens and city offices. This committee started in 2022
but recently gained new purpose and energy. Having a committee focus on the
ways we can connect and engage with others will be critical to bringing in the right
businesses, developing the most engaging events and identifying new
opportunities for our city. This committee is developing their by-laws and goals
and I hope will become an official committee of the city by the summer.

Last but not least, the city initiated a new citywide Christmas event in 2023. The
new event was very successful and was a collaborative effort between the city,
local businesses and the chamber of commerce. The city supports efforts to bring
community events to the forefront and provide citizens an opportunity to
connect. Additionally, an ordinance allowing for entertainment districts to be
developed was passed in 2023. This will allow businesses and organizations to
develop events that are structured in a variety of ways.



CHALLENGING CHANGES

While the past year has had many successes, it has also come with several
changes that have presented challenges. The changing work environment in the
state and nation have placed the burden on many organizations to increase
budgets in order to attract and retain personnel. Bryant was no different. In an
effort to keep the city safe and secure the pay scales for both fire and police were
revised in February 2023. This change led to budget constraints unless additional
revenue sources were identified. Two possible solutions were an increase to the
city millage and a proposed ballot initiative for an A&P tax. City Council passed a
small millage increase for the first time in over 30 years to help bridge some of the
gap, but the proposed A & P tax overwhelmingly failed in November 2023. This
left the city with the need do adopt budget cuts that include a hiring freeze,
elimination of new unfilled positions and COLA pay increases being eliminated to
name just a few.

The most significant change of 2023 came in late September when the elected
mayor had to resign, leaving the city in a very uncertain position. I was appointed
interim mayor by the City Council until a new mayor could be elected. The
timeline for a special mayoral election was set in November and that will occur on
March 5, 2024.

I am proud to say that while the challenges, at times, have been great, Bryant has
risen above and continued to grow and thrive. Much was accomplished this past
year and we are now on a path to have new leadership and many great
opportunities. A new Mayor will be sworn in on March 8th and a new set of “How
Tos” will be established. As the city begins this next chapter, I want to encourage
leadership to consider a few things:

1. Our citizens should receive our best

2. The campaign is over, bitterness and revenge will get us nowhere

3. Surround yourself with people who have different skill sets and opinions
than you

4. Look for the value in every person and group

5. Seek to learn and understand



6. Recognize that in the grand scheme of things you are not very important

7. It is a privilege to serve

In closing, I want to let each of you know that it has been an honor to serve my
city and to be a part of setting the stage for the next chapter in Bryant. When I
step aside next week it will be with a full heart and new understanding. I
appreciate the city staff for educating me and being gracious. You have a special
place in my heart. I applaud the Council for leading and for serving. You have
been open and supportive. Finally, I thank the citizens of Bryant who have
continued to be engaged and caring of our city and each other. I have enjoyed
meeting you and hearing from you.

May God richly bless this community going forward.

Rhonda Sanders

Mayor of Bryant



























































































































































































Section 

1.

•         General Fund (14,813.23)
•         Street Fund 0.00
•        Utility Revenue Fund 500 Water 4,800.00
•         Utility Fund  WW 4,800.00

Section 

2.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 27th  day of February, 2024.

APPROVED:

_________________________ ATTEST:

Rhonda Sanders, Mayor

___________________

Mark Smith, City Clerk

The amended city budget for the calendar year 2024 is hereby amended and adopted to read as attached.

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 _____

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF AN AMENDED BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF BRYANT 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2024 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas adopted a budget for The City of Bryant on December 19, 2023, recorded as Resolution 

2023-XX, and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas, desires to amend said Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 as attached.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS THAT:

This resolution (with attachment) shall be known as the amended budget resolution for the City of Bryant, 

Arkansas, for the twelve (12) month period beginning January 1, 2024 and ending December 31, 2024.

Page 1 of 3

Resolution 2024 -____ Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2024 - February 2024



Account Amount Description

001-0100-5001 4,880.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

001-0110-5604 2,000.00 Dell Laptop for Finance Personnel 

001-0100-5681 550.00 increase to Senior Center's Comcast bill 

001-0120-5000 -5,940.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

001-0160-5055 -1,000.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5060 -5,000.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5116 -2,300.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5210 -21,500.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5225 -1,913.23 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5322 -5,000.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5604 -5,000.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0160-5608 -5,650.00 Removing Engineering costs from General Fund to Public Works

001-0500-5000 -5,940.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

001-0500-5810 60,000.00 Fire Capital Compressor HGAC E-08-19 see support

001-0620-4640 -50,000.00 Increase from Payroll to SRO Allocation 

001-0600-5000 5,000.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

001-0600-5035 2,000.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

001-0600-5102 20,000.00 Replacing Tile Floor at PD on TIPS see support

080-0800-5000 4,800.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

080-0800-5810 -4,800.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

500-0900-5000 4,800.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

510-0950-5000 4,800.00 Misc. payroll changes as a result of vacancies

515-0140-5816 52,000.00 Oak Glenn Crossing Loop Stormwater Project

Page 2 of 2 

Resolution 2024 - _____Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2024 - February 2024



Section 

1.

•         General Fund 700,000.00
•         Street Fund 0.00
•        Utility Revenue Fund 500 Water 191,066.00
•         Utility Fund  WW (27,747.94)
•         Others Water Impact 550 163,318.06

Section 

2.

PASSED AND APPROVED this 27th  day of February, 2024.

APPROVED:

_________________________ ATTEST:

Rhonda Sanders, Mayor

___________________

Mark Smith, City Clerk

The amended city budget for the calendar year 2023 is hereby amended and adopted to read as attached.

RESOLUTION NO. 2024 _____

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF AN AMENDED BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF BRYANT 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTH PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2023 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas adopted a budget for The City of Bryant on December 13, 2022, recorded as Resolution 

2022-36, and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant, Arkansas, desires to amend said Budget for Fiscal Year 2023 as attached.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS THAT:

This resolution (with attachment) shall be known as the amended budget resolution for the City of Bryant, 

Arkansas, for the twelve (12) month period beginning January 1, 2023 and ending December 31, 2023.

Page 1 of 2

Resolution 2024 -____ Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2023 - February 2024



Account Amount Description

001-0100-5300 225.00 Year End Clean Up on categories

001-0120-5608 8,353.00 Year End Clean Up on categories

001-0600-5604 -8,650.00 Year End Clean Up on categories

001-0600-5810 700,000.00 Body Cams Nov 2022 approved Ord. 2022-32

001-0610-5650 72.00 Year End Clean Up on categories

510-0950-5816 -27,747.94 Ended up not using the 535 money for WW asked for in Dec of 2023

500-0900-4623/29 191,066.00 Using it for Water instead 

550-0900-5626 163,318.06 zeroing out water impact fees at year end 

Page 2 of 2 

Resolution 2024 - _____Adopting an Amended City Budget for 2023 - February 2024



RESOLUTION No. 2024-______

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF BRYANT TO SELL AND/OR
DISPOSE OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT OWNED BY THE CITY OF BRYANT

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant owns certain property, that are in a state of disrepair, not used,
obsolete or otherwise not needed by the City of Bryant; and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant wishes to dispose of these items through public auction and finds
that an online, public auction is the most efficient and effective way to dispose of these items; and

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant cannot guarantee that these items will be sold via this auction,
needs to have an alternate method of disposal should a sale of such items not be accomplished.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BRYANT, ARKANSAS, THAT:

Section 1: That the Mayor, or his/ her duly authorized representative, may sell, exchange any municipal
supplies, materials or equipment through the use of an online public auction.

Section 2: If the public auction is unsuccessful, the Mayor, or his/her duly authorized representative may
dispose of the items by any lawful and reasonable means necessary.

Section 3: The Mayor, or his/her duly authorized representative, is authorized to dispose of the following
list of items, attached hereto and incorporated herein as "Exhibit A".

PASSED AND APPROVED this ____ day of ____________, _________..

APPROVED:

___________________________
Rhonda Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

___________________________
Mark Smith, City Clerk



Exhibit A

2006 GMC Sierra Pickup Truck VIN# 2GTEC13V961337029



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

AND
CITY OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS

This lnterlocal Agreement executed between Saline County, Arkansas ("County'') and the City or Bryant,
Arkansas ("City") is entered into on this _______ day of _______________________, 2024, pursuant to
the provisions of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act (the "Act") (Ark. Code Ann, §§ 25-20-101 through
25-20-108).

Whereas, the City of Bryant Arkansas and Saline County, Arkansas are political subdivisions of the State
of Arkansas; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the County, through the Saline County Planning Board, to review and
approve new and existing residential subdivisions and commercial developments located within
unincorporated areas of Saline County, Arkansas; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the City, through the Bryant Planning Commission, to review and approve
new and existing subdivision developments located within the city and the extraterritorial jurisdiction of
the Bryant Planning Area Boundary of the City of Bryant; and

Whereas, the parties hereto desire to enter into an Agreement which delineates the County and City's
respective authority and obligations concerning the review of planning and development projects in the
City's extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Now Therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The City will retain the authority to control the subdivision of land within its adopted and
recorded planning area boundary in accordance with and under the relevant Arkansas statutory
provisions, including but not limited to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-56-401 through 14-56-408 and §§
14-56-410 through 14-56-425.

2. The City shall have subdivision jurisdiction, including final approval for recordation of final plats
with the Saline County Recorder for proposed subdivisions lying within the City's extra-territorial
jurisdiction.

3. All proposed subdivision plats located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Bryant
Planning Area Boundary of the City shall be first submitted to the city’s Community Development
Department.

4. After review by City Department Staff and Development Review Committee (DRC) for
compliance with all municipal codes, a copy of all applicable plats submitted to the city shall be
transmitted to the Saline County Planning Board for review and comment.

5. Upon receipt of plat and a check from the developer made payable to Saline County for all
applicable fees due, the Saline County Planning Board shall Forty-five (45) days to forward to the city any
suggested changes to the plat unless further time is granted in writing by the City. Developers are

1



required to be in attendance for the review, and all comments will be sent to the Bryant Planning
Commission.

6. The Community Development Director for the City shall include any comments from the Saline
County Planning Board to the Bryant Planning Commission for consideration when it reviews the plat for
approval.

7. Developments that are within the city's extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Bryant Planning Area
Boundary shall obtain approval of the subdivision’s name from the Saline County Tax Assessor and
names of the streets or roads within the development shall be approved by the Saline County Office of
Emergency Management.

8. If the residential development is to have private streets or roads within the development, the
developer must establish an improvement district with provisions for the maintenance and repair of said
streets or roads, stormwater infrastructure and ongoing electrical cost and maintenance of street lights
by said district.

9. In the event of differences in the developmental requirements for street design standards of the
respective parties, those requirements most stringent shall be applied.

10. Saline County and the City of Bryant shall have the authority to inspect and otherwise ensure the
quality of street construction for all subdivisions approved in the extraterritorial areas of the Bryant
Planning Area Boundary.

11. Both the County and the City Public Works Department shall provide written documentation of
the satisfactory completion of roadway installation and that it is compliant with the more stringent
regulations of the county or city. The documentation shall be provided to City's Community
Development Director or his/her designee.

12. The City requires the developer to furnish an infrastructure construction bond within 10 days
after approval of the Preliminary Plat to ensure completion of improvements before Final Plat approval.

13. Upon completion of the installation of the roadway and as a condition of approval of the Final
Plat, the developer shall provide a Maintenance Bond, or other acceptable instrument assigned, that
meets the higher bond requirement of the respective parties, made payable to the County and City, with
a copy of same to both entities.

14. Upon completion of the installation of non-road improvements (i.e. water and/or sewer,
stormwater infrastructure) and as a condition of approval of the Final Plat the developer shall provide a
Maintenance Bond or other instrument assigned, that meets the higher bond requirement of the
respective parties, made payable to the City.

15. By mutual agreement, proof of annexation request, and written confirmation of the Saline
County Judge, the provisions of this agreement may be waived for plats involving extra-territorial lands
that are contiguous to the city limits of Bryant at the time of plat submittal.

2



16. Plans for storm water drainage lying within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, along with
construction and implementation of said plans, must be reviewed and approved by the Director of the
City's Department of Community Development and Public Works.

17. Each party shall be entitled to charge its respective customary fees for review of the plat and
Inspection of the development.

18. When the City receives an application for a project located within its extraterritorial jurisdiction
that does not require the City Planning Commission’s review, the City shall request that the developer
contact the County’s Planning Board for review of the project prior to commencing construction.
Likewise if the County receives an application for a project located within the City’s extraterritorial
jurisdiction that does not require the Saline County Planning Board’s review, the County shall request
that the developer contact the City’s Community Development Department for review of the project
prior to commencing construction.

19. This Agreement shall be administered by the Mayor of the City of Bryant and the Saline County
Judge, or their respective duly designated representatives.

20. This Agreement shall continue until terminated by either party hereto.

21. Termination of the Agreement shall be effected by thirty-days' written notice to the Mayor of the
City of Bryant and the Saline County Judge.

22. Any costs associated with executing the functions specified herein shall be borne by
the party who is responsible, as identified herein, for executing said function.

City of Bryant, Arkansas Saline County, Arkansas

___________________________________ ___________________________________
Rhonda Sanders Matt Brumley
City of Bryant Mayor Saline County Judge

3



INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
SALINE COUNTY, ARKANSAS

AND
CITY OF BRYANT, ARKANSAS

This lnterlocal Agreement executed between Saline County, Arkansas ("County'') and the City or Bryant,
Arkansas ("City") is entered into on this _______ day of _______________________, 2024, pursuant to
the provisions of the lnterlocal Cooperation Act (the "Act") (Ark. Code Ann, §§ 25-20-101 through
25-20-108).

Whereas, the City of Bryant Arkansas and Saline County, Arkansas are political subdivisions of the State
of Arkansas; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the County, through the Saline County Planning Board, to review and
approve new and existing residential subdivision subdivisions and commercial developments located
within unincorporated areas of Saline County, Arkansas; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the City, through the Bryant Planning Commission, to review and approve
new and existing residential subdivision developments located within the city and the extraterritorial
jurisdiction of the Bryant Planning Area Boundary of the City of Bryant; and

Whereas, the parties hereto desire to enter into an Agreement which delineates the County and City's
respective authority and obligations concerning planning matters the review of planning and
development projects in the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction.

Now Therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. The City will retain the authority to control the subdivision of land within its adopted and
recorded planning area boundary in accordance with and under the relevant Arkansas statutory
provisions, including but not limited to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-56-401 through 14-56-408 and §§
14-56-410 through 14-56-425.

2. The City shall have subdivision jurisdiction, including final approval for recordation of final plats
with the Saline County Recorder for proposed subdivisions lying within the City's extra-territorial
jurisdiction.

3. All proposed subdivision plats located within the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Bryant
Planning Area Boundary of the City shall be first submitted to the City Planning Department city’s
Community Development Department.

4. After review by City Department Staff and Development Review Committee (DRC) for
compliance with all municipal codes, a copy of all applicable plats submitted to the city shall be
transmitted to the Saline County Planning Board for review and comment.

5. Upon receipt of plat and a check from the developer made payable to Saline County for all
applicable fees due, the Saline County Planning Board shall have sixty (60) days Forty-five (45) days to
forward to the city any suggested changes to the plat unless further time is granted in writing by the City.

1



Developers are required to be in attendance for the review, and all comments will be sent to the Bryant
Planning Commission.

6. The Planning Manager Community Development Director for the City shall include any
comments from the Saline County Planning Board to the Bryant Planning Commission for consideration
when it reviews and approves the plat for approval.

7. Developments that are within the city's extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Bryant Planning Area
Boundary shall obtain approval of the subdivision’s name from the Saline County Tax Assessor and
names of the streets or roads within the development shall be approved by the Saline County Office of
Emergency Management.

8. If the residential development is to have private streets or roads within the development, the
developer must establish an improvement district with provisions for the maintenance and repair of said
streets or roads, stormwater infrastructure and ongoing electrical cost and maintenance of street lights
by said district.

9. In the event of differences in the developmental requirements for street design standards of the
respective parties, those requirements most stringent shall be applied.

10. Saline County and the City of Bryant shall have the authority to inspect and otherwise ensure the
quality of street construction for all subdivisions approved in the extraterritorial areas of the Bryant
Planning Area Boundary. unless the County waives this authority in writing in which case the City of
Bryant shall assume authority.

11. Both the County and the City Public Works Department shall provide written documentation of
the Upon satisfactory completion of roadway installation and that it is compliant with the more stringent
regulations of the county or city., The documentation shall be provided to the County shall provide
written documentation to the City's Planning Coordinator Community Development Director or his/her
designee. That the roadway has been installed and is compliant with both County and City regulations.

12. The City requires the developer to furnish an infrastructure construction bond within 10 days
after approval of the Preliminary Plat to ensure completion of improvements before Final Plat approval.

13. Upon completion of the installation of the roadway and as a condition of approval of the Final
Plat, the developer shall provide a one year Maintenance Bond, or other acceptable instrument
assigned, that meets the higher bond requirement of the respective parties, and approved by the
County, made payable to the County and City, with a copy of same to both entities.

14. Upon completion of the installation of non-road improvements (i.e. water and/or sewer,
stormwater infrastructure) and as a condition of approval of the Final Plat the developer shall provide a
one year Maintenance Bond, or other instrument assigned, that meets the higher bond requirement of
the respective parties, and approved by the City, made payable to the City.

15. By mutual agreement, proof of annexation request, and written confirmation of the Saline
County Judge, the provisions of this agreement may be waived for plats involving extra-territorial lands
that are contiguous to the city limits of Bryant at the time of plat submittal.

2



16. Plans for storm water drainage lying within the City's extraterritorial jurisdiction, along with
construction and implementation of said plans, must be reviewed and approved by the Director of the
City's Department of Community Development and Public Works.

17. Each party shall be entitled to charge its respective customary fees for review of the plat and
Inspection of the development.

18. When the City receives an application for a project located within its extraterritorial jurisdiction
that does not require the City Planning Commission’s review, the City shall request that the developer
contact the County’s Planning Board for review of the project prior to commencing construction.
Likewise if the County receives an application for a project located within the City’s extraterritorial
jurisdiction that does not require the Saline County Planning Board’s review, the County shall request
that the developer contact the City’s Community Development Department for review of the project
prior to commencing construction.

18.19. This Agreement shall be administered by the Mayor of the City of Bryant and the Saline County
Judge, or their respective duly designated representatives.

19.20. This Agreement shall continue until terminated by either party hereto.

20.21. Termination of the Agreement shall be effected by thirty-days' written notice to the Mayor of the
City of Bryant and the Saline County Judge.

21.22. Any costs associated with executing the functions specified herein shall be borne by
the party who is responsible, as identified herein, for executing said function.

City of Bryant, Arkansas Saline County, Arkansas

___________________________________ ___________________________________
Rhonda Sanders Matt Brumley
City of Bryant Mayor Saline County Judge

3



ORDINANCE No. 2024 -  _____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REDUCE THE SPEED LIMIT ON HILLTOP ROAD IN BRYANT, AR
FROM ITS PRESENT SPEED LIMIT OF 45 MPH TO A MAXIMUM OF 35 MPH;

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

WHEREAS, the current speed limit on Hilltop Road in Bryant is currently 45 MPH; and  
 

WHEREAS,  similar roads in the city limits of Bryant have a speed limit less than 45 MPH; and  
 

WHEREAS, many subdivisions have been constructed on Hilltop Road since the speed limit
was set; and

 
WHEREAS,  it is in the best interest and welfare of the citizens of the city of Bryant, Arkansas
and all citizens that the speed limit on Hilltop Road to reduced to a maximum of 35 MPH. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED  by the City Council of the City of Bryant

Arkansas: 
 

Section 1. It is important for the safety of the public, students and children of the city of Bryant,
Arkansas that the speed limit on Hilltop Road be reduced from its present speed limit of 45 MPH to a
maximum of 35 MPH.
 

Section 2. All ordinances and resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 3. Emergency Clause. It is in the best interest and for the safety of the citizens of the

City of Bryant, Saline County, Arkansas, that the speed limit be immediately reduced and that an
emergency be declared, placing this Ordinance in full force and effect immediately upon its passage and
approval.  
 

PASSED and APPROVED this _____ day of_____________, 2023. 
 
 
 Approved: Attest: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ _______________________________
Mayor Rhonda Sanders Mark Smith, City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 2024- ___

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING IMPLEMENTATION OF A POLICY GOVERNING
WATER LEAKAGE ADJUSTMENTS IN BRYANT, ARKANSAS

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant (“the City”) operates a water and wastewater utility system
(“System”) in the City of Bryant; and

WHEREAS, the City is often faced with requests for billing adjustments from customers who
experience high bills due to water leaks; and

WHEREAS, the City purchases water from Central Arkansas Water at a cost that must
be recovered through water rates; and

WHEREAS, the City can provide some relief on high water and wastewater bills caused by
water leakage; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to adopt and implement a policy that governs the circumstances
under which water leakage adjustments may be provided.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF BRYANT,
ARKANSAS THAT:

The Policy Governing Water Leakage Billing Adjustments (EXHIBIT A- attached) is hereby
adopted by the City Council of the City of Bryant.

Section 1: Emergency Declared.

This Ordinance is necessary to preserve the public peace, health, safety and welfare, an
emergency is declared to exist and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after
the date of its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED this day of February, 2024.

APPROVED: ATTEST:



Rhonda Sanders, Mayor Mark Smith, City Clerk



EXHIBIT A

City of Bryant Water and Wastewater Utilities

POLICY GOVERNING WATER LEAKAGE BILLING ADJUSTMENTS

Customers may qualify for bill adjustments to water and sewer charges when property-side leaks cause unusually

high utility bills. The Customer Service Manager will provide a report to the Water and Sewer Advisory Committee

each month detailing the leak adjustments under $100 and a separate report detailing requests for adjustments

over $100.

ELIGIBILITY FOR ADJUSTMENTS

Each customer account is eligible to receive one adjustment to water and sewer charges during the Fiscal year

period (January 1 to December 31.), (except irrigation-dedicated water services which will be evaluated at a 2 Fiscal

year period) including indoor and outdoor leaks.

● Adjustments are made to the water and sewer portion of the bill only.

● Customers may request adjustments after leaks have been repaired.

● The Customer Service Manager is authorized to make adjustments up to $100.

● Any requested adjustments over $100 must appear before the Water and Sewer Advisory Committee for a

decision on eligibility.

● Any City staff person will check the water meter to verify that the leak has been fixed. The Customer

requesting an adjustment will be asked to confirm the leak and repair by singing a statement provided by

the Water and Wastewater Department; and providing adequate documentation. (i.e. receipt of materials

and/or services of repair).

EXCEPTIONS TO ADJUSTMENT POLICY

● Damages caused by leaks will not be assessed as part of the adjustment.

● Any plumber or contractor services associated with leak detection or repairs will not be assessed as

part of the adjustment.

● No adjustments can be made to fees that are associated with meter, watershed, and taxes.

● Any customer may requestion verification of accuracy of their water meter by requesting a

manufacturer’s calibration test. However, should the meter’s retested measurements indicate that the

water used by the customer is at or below the measured reading, the customer will be responsible for

all costs associated with removing, installing, and testing of the meter.

IDENTIFICATION OF ELIGIBLE PRIVATE SERVICE LEAKS

Private Service leaks may be identified by the Customer or by the Water and Wastewater Department.

● It is not the responsibility of the Water and Wastewater Department to monitor for customer leaks.

However, if the Department does recognize the possible presence of a leak, the Customer will be advised

in a timely manner. If the Customer is not home to notify in person, a notice will be posted on the

Customer’s door.

● When the Department does notify the Customer of the possible presence of a leak, the Customer must

make reasonable efforts to locate the leak and initiate repairs within 30 days of notification.

● Water loss due to theft, vandalism, construction damage, or unintentional usage, such as being unaware

of a garden hose or water tap running for an extended period of time, is ineligible for an adjustment. A

signed statement from the Customer stating the cause of the leak of water loss will be required.



ADJUSTMENT

The method for adjusting the Customer utility bill after the leak has been repaired is:

● Customer Service will determine when the leak started and ended based on the water meter system

data.

● An adjustment of 50% discount on all water and wastewater used will be applied to the bill

determined for the month of highest consumption during the leak timeframe.

● No late charges related to the leak will be assessed if an adjustment is allowed.

REQUESTING A LEAK ADJUSTMENT

The Customer must make a written request for a leak adjustment on a Leak Adjustment Request form obtained at

Bryant Water and Wastewater Customer Service. The Customer may submit the form by mail to:

Bryant Water and Wastewater Department

Attn: Customer Service Manager

210 SW 3rd Street

Bryant, AR, 72022

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR A LEAK ADJUSTMENT REQUEST
1. Date

2. Customer Name

3. Account Number

4. Service Address

5. City, State, Zip

6. Home Phone

7. Work Phone

8. Date Leak was Detected

9. Date Leak was Repaired

10. Description of Leak (faucet, toilet, underground, etc)

11. Explanation of How Leak was Repaired

12. Copy of Invoice for Plumber’s Services or for Parts Purchased by the Customer to make the repair

13. Letters from landlords or property management companies affirming repairs will be accepted in lieu of

invoices, if applicable.

PLEASE NOTE: Completion of request does not guarantee an adjustment will be made to the Customer’s City

of Bryant utilities bill. No adjustment will be made to any fees, incurred penalties, or tax-portion of the bill.

Copies of invoices and receipts for repairs must be provided with the Customer request for an adjustment. The

account must remain current and bills paid by due date to avoid additional service charges or disconnection of

service.

PAYMENT PLANS
● Customers with bills over $100 may request a 4-month payment plan with a down payment of 25% of

the bill with the remaining 3 payments of 25% each.

● In order to enter into this program, DPA request must be completed and returned to the Customer

Service Manager.

● Customers must remain current on future bills and make payments on time. Failure to do so will result

in a default or termination of the agreement.



● Customers that miss a payment may have their service disconnected.

● In the event a customer has already executed a DPA within the allowed calendar year, the Customer

Service Manager will review the Leak Adjustment Request and adjust executed DPA to reflect adjusted

bill.



Memorandum of Understanding

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is executed on behalf of the City of
Bryant, hereafter referred to as “the City” and the Bryant Public School District,
hereafter referred to as “the District”.

Purpose

The purpose of this MOU is to establish an understanding and agreement
between the parties related to Hill Farm Road Area Improvements.

Details and Benefits

The Bryant Parkway project is scheduled to be completed in the summer of
2024. With the completion of this project, substantial more traffic will divert onto Hill
Farm Road. A project map has been developed by Garver showing the improvements
that are necessary to Hill Farm Road to accommodate the increase in traffic. (attached
hereto as Exhibit A)

Agreement

The District agrees to provide the expenses for the design work and associated
fees for improvement area 1 & 2 shown on the Project map for Hill Farm Road. The
City will initially pay the expenses associated design work and associated fees and the
District will reimburse the City up to, but not to exceed, One Hundred and Fifty Five
Thousand Dollars ($155,000).

Entire Agreement
Neither party to this agreement is the agent of the other for the purposes of this

agreement. No employee or contractor of one party shall become the employee or
agent of the other party by participating in the joint communication activities of this
agreement.

City of Bryant Bryant School District

By: __________________________ By: ________________________

Title: ________________________ Title: ______________________

Date: ________________________ Date: ______________________



ONLY
ONLY

CITY OF BRYANT

BRYANT, ARKANSAS

FOR EASTBOUND TRAFFIC U-TURN

LEFT TURN LANE EXTENSION

LEFT TURN LANE

ACCOMODATE WESTBOUND 

EASTBOUND LEFT TO 

REDUCE LENGTH OF 

WESTBOUND LEFT

LEFT TURN LANE FOR 

EASTBOUND

TRAFFIC U-TURN TO GO 

LOON FOR WESTBOUND 

WESTBOUND

TRAFFIC U-TURN TO GO 

LOON FOR EASTBOUND 

PROJECT 1 AND 2 ONLY

CONCEPT IMPROVEMENTS

EXHIBIT - HILL FARM ROAD

RCCorbyn
Architect
If we don't have a traffic study, we would likely make this left turn lane as long as possible. The risk here is that you spend extra money on new pavement and curb that may not be necessary.  A traffic study would tell us how long you need to extend this left turn lane.

RCCorbyn
Architect
If we build this without a traffic study, it could fail when school starts back up again in August 2024 and Bryant Parkway is opened to traffic. With a traffic study, we would be able to identify potential problems like this early and we would have data to determine solutions. 

RCCorbyn
Architect
We won't have actual traffic data from Bryant Pkwy., however, Metroplan has detailed regional models that make predictions about how many vehicles will utilize Bryant Parkway once it is opened. We will utilize these predictions, along with the schools zoning maps to predict site traffic after Bryant Parkway is opened. 

RCCorbyn
Architect
If this connection is made in the future, traffic patterns could change significantly, which could result in modifications to previous work done on Project 1 and 2. Conducting a traffic study now would minimize the possibility of modifications to previously constructed improvements. 

RCCorbyn
Architect
In general, these may not be the right solutions to the congestion and safety issues this area might experience once Bryant Parkway is opened. As of now, they are an educated guess on the improvements that may alleviate operational issues, but a traffic study could identify congestion/safety issues that we have not identified yet.  

RCCorbyn
Architect
This left turn lane will be utilized by left turners into the junior high, and also elementary school traffic that wants to u-turn to go northbound on Bryant Parkway. In the AM, the turning movements here could be high with significant opposing traffic going eastbound on Hill Farm Rd. There is a risk that this intersection fails in August 2024 when school is back in session and Bryant Parkway is open to traffic.  A traffic study would identify this potential issue early and allow us to determine solutions based on data. 

RCCorbyn
Architect
A traffic study will tell us how much the left turn lane into the elementary school can be shortened to allow more room for the left turn lane into the Junior High School. 



Ward 2 Water/Wastewater Position Recommendation

I am recommending Nancy Pruitt for the open position in Ward 2 on the Water/Wastewater Committee.

Nancy is well connected in the community. She comes from a long line of family members who have

been engaged in community service. While her family is not from here, she and her husband have been

here for several years and have selected Bryant as their home for far into the future. Here are some

other pieces of information about Nancy.

PROFILE

I have been a Bryant resident for approximately 8 years in total and desire to be involved in making it the

best place to live in the state of Arkansas.

EXPERIENCE

Current owner of n.Pruitt photography 2010-present

Children’s Book Author 2018-present

Co-owner of The Flying Ace Farm

Saline County Master Gardener

Past Experience includes-

15 years of retail management, buying, and marketing

6 years employment with a non-profit organization conducting school programs

7 years of full time itinerant ministry

EDUCATION

University of Arkansas Little Rock- BA in Music with a Minor

Tim and I visited with Nancy and feel she will bring a great perspective to the committee and will be a

strong advocate for the city and its citizens.

I am asking for your approval of this appointment.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-____

RESOLUTION TO TEMPORARILY SUSPEND ZONING REGULATIONS FOR SHORT
TERM RENTALS

WHEREAS, the City of Bryant passed Ordinance 2018-03 amending the Zoning
Regulations of the City of Bryant to include regulations for Short Term Rental Units, and;

WHEREAS, On April 8, 2024 a total solar eclipse will visit Arkansas and be visible
from the Bryant City limits, and;

WHEREAS, the eclipse has the potential to bring in many visitors from out of town and
out of state and to boost the economy for the City of Bryant, and;

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Bryant desires to suspend the Standards in
Section 17.26.1 of the Bryant Zoning Regulations, specifically sections A and B during the dates
of Friday, April 5, 2024 through Tuesday, April 9, 2024;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Bryant,
Arkansas:

THAT the Standards for Short Term Rental Units in the Bryant Zoning Regulations
Section 17.26.1 subsection A and B be temporarily suspended during the dates of April 5, 2024
through April 9, 2024 allowing residents of Bryant to rent their permanent residence as a
short-term rental unit without having to show proof of permanent residency or obtain a business
license from the City of Bryant.

PASSED AND APPROVED this __________day of February, 2024.

APPROVED:

________________________________

Rhonda Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

________________________________

Mark Smith, City Clerk


	Invocation
	Pledge of Allegiance
	Call to Order
	Approval of Minutes
	Presentations and Announcements
	Director's Report
	Public Comments
	Old Business
	New Business
	Finance
	Animal Control
	City Attorney
	Community Development
	Public Works

	Council Comments
	Mayor Comments
	Adjournments

